
 
 

West Oxfordshire District Council, Council Offices, Woodgreen, Witney, OX28 1NB 
www.westoxon.gov.uk Tel: 01993 861000 

 

Friday, 25 March 2022 

 

Tel: 01993 861522 

e-mail - democratic.services@westoxon.gov.uk 

 

UPLANDS AREA PLANNING SUB-COMMITTEE 
 

You are summoned to a meeting of the Uplands Area Planning Sub-Committee which will be held 

in the Council Chamber, Woodgreen, Witney OX28 1NB on Monday, 4 April 2022 at 2.00 pm. 

 

 
Giles Hughes 

Chief Executive 

 

 

To: Members of the Uplands Area Planning Sub-Committee 

 

Councillors:  Jeff Haine (Chairman),  Julian Cooper (Vice-Chair),  Andrew Beaney, Nathalie 

Chapple,  Merilyn Davies, Ted Fenton, David Jackson, Alex Postan,  Geoff Saul, Dean 

Temple and Alex Wilson 

 

Recording of Proceedings – The law allows the public proceedings of Council, Cabinet, and 

Committee Meetings to be recorded, which includes filming as well as audio-recording.  

Photography is also permitted. By participating in this meeting, you are consenting to be filmed. 

 

As a matter of courtesy, if you intend to record any part of the proceedings please let the 

Democratic Services officers know prior to the start of the meeting. 

 

Public Document Pack

Page 1

http://www.westoxon.gov.uk/


 

 

 

AGENDA 
 

1.   Minutes of Previous Meeting (Pages 3 - 8) 

To approve the minutes of the meeting held on 7 March 2022 

 

2.   Apologies for Absence and Temporary Appointments  

 

3.   Declarations of Interest  

To receive any declarations from Members of the Committee on any items to be 

considered at the meeting 

 

4.   Applications for Development (Pages 9 - 40) 

Purpose: 

To consider applications for development, details of which are set out in the attached 

schedule. 

Recommendation: 

That the applications be determined in accordance with the recommendations of the 
Business Manager – Development Management. 

 
Page Application Number Address Officer 

 

11-15 

21/02185/HHD Broad Close, Little 

Tew Road, Church 

Enstone, Chipping 

Norton 

 

Briony 

Farmer 

 

 

16-19 

21/02186/LBC Broad Close, Little 

Tew Road, Church 

Enstone, Chipping 

Norton 

 

Briony 

Farmer 

 

 

20-32 

21/02570/FUL Land West Of 

Greenacres, Churchill 

Road, Kingham 

 

James Nelson 

 

 

33-39 

21/03794/FUL Lower Court Farm, 

Green End, 

Chadlington 

 

James Nelson 

 

 
 

5.   Applications Determined under Delegated Powers and Appeal Decisions (Pages 41 - 52) 

Purpose: 

To inform the Sub-Committee of applications determined under delegated powers and 

any appeal decisions. 

Recommendation: 

That the reports be noted. 

 

 

(END) 

Page 2



WEST OXFORDSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

Minutes of the meeting of the 

Uplands Area Planning Sub-Committee 

Held in the Council Chamber at 2.00 pm on Monday, 7 March 2022 

PRESENT 

Councillors: Councillor Jeff Haine (Chairman), Councillor Julian Cooper (Vice-Chair), 

Councillor Andrew Beaney, Councillor Merilyn Davies, Councillor David Jackson, Councillor 

Elizabeth Poskitt, Councillor Alex Postan, Councillor Geoff Saul, Councillor Dean Temple and 

Councillor Alex Wilson. 

Officers:  Abby Fettes (Interim Development Manager), James Nelson (Planning Officer, 

Naresh Kajoo (Planning Officer) and Amy Bridgewater-Carnall (Democratic Services 

Manager). 

56 Minutes of Previous Meeting  

The minutes of the meeting held on 7 February 2022 were approved and signed by the 

Chairman as a correct record. 

57 Apologies for Absence and Temporary Appointments  

Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Ted Fenton; and Councillor Elizabeth 

Poskitt substituted for Councillor Nathalie Chapple. 

58 Declarations of Interest  

Councillor Andrew Beaney declared a pecuniary interest in application 21/03948/FUL, Burford 

Comprehensive School, Cheltenham Road, Burford as he was a teacher at the school.  He left 

the room whilst the item was discussed. 

59 Applications for Development  

Application 21/02570/FUL – Land West of Greenacres, Churchill Road, Kingham 

 

The Planning Officer, James Nelson introduced the application for the construction of a 

dwelling together with associated outbuildings and landscaping, close existing and formation of 

a new vehicular access in revised position (as per amended plans). 

The following people addressed the Committee: 

Ms Dawn Brodie, on behalf of the applicant, supporting. 

Information contained in the follow on report advised that one additional letter in opposition 

to the scheme had been received, relating to the ecological assessment and a disregard for the 

environment. 

Following a question from Councillor Poskitt, Ms Brodie confirmed that the barn at the front 

of the development would be used for garaging and a workshop. 

The Planning Officer then presented his report containing a recommendation of approval.  He 

outlined the planning principles and advised that officers felt the application adhered to Local 

Plan Policy H2, relating to the development of new dwellings.  Mr Nelson referred to the 

Burford-Charlbury Sub-Area Strategy which advised that delivery of homes should reach 774 

by the end of the plan period.  The applicant had received pre-application advice and following 

negotiations with officers and the Conservation Officer, amendments had been made to 

reduce the height of the property.   

Public Document Pack

Page 1Page 3

Agenda Item 1



Uplands Area Planning Sub-Committee 

07/March2022 

Therefore, officers were of the opinion that the application accorded with the Local Plan 

Policies listed in paragraph 5.22 of the report and was recommended for approval subject to 

the proposed drainage matters being resolved by officers using delegated authority. 

Councillor Beaney addressed the meeting, and having requested the image of the street scene 

be displayed, he advised that he did not see how the proposal complied with policy OS2.  He 

felt that there was extensive glazed units and was concerned about light spill.  In addition, he 

did not feel that sufficient ecological mitigations were being requested.   

Councillor Beaney therefore proposed that the application be deferred to allow a site visit to 

take place.  This was seconded by Councillor Davies. 

Councillor Davies agreed with the comments made, thought the size of the development was 

too large and could not see how it would fit with surrounding properties. 

Councillor Jackson also welcomed a site visit. 

Councillor Postan queried if details of the stonework and lintels could be more detailed.  In 

response, Mr Nelson advised that this was covered in Condition 3 and the details would be 

agreed in consultation with the Conservation Design Architect. 

Following a question from Councillor Poskitt regarding the single dormer, Mr Nelson advised 

that this fitted with the local characteristic and was in accordance with the design guide. 

The proposal that the application be deferred to allow a site visit to take place was put to the 

vote and was carried. 

Deferred 

 

Application 21/03602/HHD – Jasmine House, The Green, Kingham, Chipping Norton 

The Interim Development Manager, Abby Fettes introduced the application for alterations to 

the external rear elevation and alterations to the ground floor internals. 

This application was taken in conjunction with 21/03603/LBC which dealt with the Listed 

Building Consent. 

The following people addressed the Committee: 

Mr Tim Bennett, the agent on behalf of the applicant. 

The Interim Development Manager then presented the report containing a recommendation 

of approval.  She advised that the two applications would have been approved under officers 

delegated authority, however, the parish council had submitted an objection to the listed 

building consent.  Mrs Fettes advised that no objection had been received from the 

Conservation Officer and it was felt that the alterations respected the listed building.  With 

regards to the objection raised regarding overlooking, Members noted that the sky light was 

1.7 metres above floor level and the existing boundary treatment was also highlighted.  

Officers therefore felt that the application should be approved as it was conserving the 

historical fabric of the building and was not altering the existing use. 

Councillor Beaney clarified that the roof light could be opened and felt that as this matched 

the other existing rooflights, no additional noise would occur.  He therefore proposed that 

the application be granted as per officers recommendations. 

This was seconded by Councillor Poskitt who, having queried what a ‘conservation rooflight’, 

was advised that these sat more flush to the roofline, in a traditional manner. 

Page 2Page 4



Uplands Area Planning Sub-Committee 

07/March2022 

Committee members agreed with the comments made and felt the alterations were tasteful 

and modest. 

The Officer recommendation of approval was then put to the vote and was carried.  

Approved 

Application 21/03603/LBC – Jasmine House, The Green, Kingham, Chipping Norton 

The Interim development Manager, Abby Fettes, introduced the application for alterations to 

the external rear elevation and alterations to the ground floor internals. 

This application was taken in conjunction with 21/03602/HHD which dealt with the 

Householder Development consent. 

The following people addressed the Committee: 

Mr Tim Bennett, the applicant. 

The Interim Development Manager then presented the report containing a recommendation 

of approval.   

Councillor Beaney proposed that the application be granted as per officers and this was 

seconded by Councillor Poskitt. 

The Officer recommendation of approval was then put to the vote and was carried.  

Approved 

 

Application 21/03649/LBC – Ground Floor, 112 High Street, Burford 

The Planning Officer, Naresh Kajoo introduced the retrospective application for the 

installation of a non-illuminated hanging sign. 

The following people addressed the Committee: 

Mr Ian Danne, the applicant. 

The Planning Officer then presented his report containing a recommendation of refusal.  He 

advised that the sign had been made of plastic rather than the more acceptable material of 
timber painted board in line with paragraph 17.7 of the West Oxfordshire Design Guide.  In 

addition, the style of bracket was not felt to be appropriate as detailed in paragraph 5.9 of the 

report. 

Following a question from Councillor Haine, Mr Kajoo advised that there were other hanging 

signs along the High Street but the concern was that approving this would set a precedent. 

Councillor Postan agreed with the officer recommendations and reminded the meeting of the 

origins of hanging signs, which were used as a visual indicator of where to shop. He felt it was 

important to maintain the pattern and therefore proposed that the application be refused as 

per officers recommendations.  This was seconded by Councillor Cooper who stated that 

Burford was a very special location, the historical character should be retained and highlighted 

that the sign was contrary to the design guide. 

Councillor Beaney disagreed as he felt the sign and brackets used by other shops was very 

similar and noted that plastic would weather better than wood.  He also felt it was important 

to support local businesses.  Councillor Davies agreed and felt this was in keeping with other 

signs on the High Street. 

Councillor Jackson advised that he had driven past the premises and could not see any 

problem with the existing sign. 

Page 3Page 5



Uplands Area Planning Sub-Committee 

07/March2022 

Councillor Saul expressed sympathy for the applicant and noted that wooden signs did not 

last, however, he felt the guidance had been available but had not been accessed by the 

applicant. 

Councillor Temple agreed that the design guide should be adhered to. 

The officer recommendation of refusal was then put to the vote and was lost. 

 Councillor Beaney proposed that the application be approved, contrary to officer 

recommendation, and this was seconded by Councillor Davies.  On being put to the vote, this 

proposal was carried. 

Approved 

 

Application 00/03794/FUL – Lower Court Farm, Green End, Chadlington 

The Planning Officer, James Nelson introduced the application for a change of use of land from 

agricultural to domestic, along with the formation of a tennis court, erection of a greenhouse 

and associated landscaping. 

The following people addressed the Committee: 

Mr Neil Warner, on behalf of the applicant, supporting. 

Following a question from Councillor Postan, Mr Warner advised that the application site was 

in an Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty (AONB). 

The Planning Officer then presented his report containing a recommendation of refusal.  He 

advised that policies OS4, EH1, EH9, EH11 and EH13 were relevant due to the proximity of 

the site to the Grade II listed farmhouse and its location in the AONB.  Mr Nelson highlighted 

that proposal would be prominent in views from Green End and would have an impact on the 

heritage asset.  In addition, officers did not feel the impact was outweighed by any public 

benefits and the application was therefore recommended for refusal. 

Councillor Temple was inclined to agree with officers but having undertaken an independent 
site visit, had some queries as to how the proposal related to the street scene.  He noted that 

the site was located some way outside of the village and felt that the proposed location of the 

tennis court would be better than the alternative which would sit in front of the Grade 2 

listed farmhouse. 

Councillor Jackson agreed that a site visit would help and proposed that the application be 

deferred.  This was seconded by Councillor Temple. 

The proposal that the application be deferred to allow a site visit to take place was put to the 

vote and was carried. 

Deferred 

(Councillor Davies left the meeting during the deliberation of this item) 

 

Application 21/03948/FUL – Burford Comprehensive School, Cheltenham Road, Burford 

 

The Planning Officer, James Nelson introduced the application for the creation of an All 

Weather sports pitch within a fenced enclosure and an outdoor activity zone.  Works to 

include the installation of floodlights and landscaping works. 

Page 4Page 6



Uplands Area Planning Sub-Committee 

07/March2022 

Mr Nelson advised that the site was close to the boundary of the Conservation Area and 

AONB.  He highlighted the existing, established planting on the southern and eastern 

boundaries and explained that the light spillage would be restricted to inside the site.  Burford 

Town Council strongly supported the application and it was noted that a Community Use 

Agreement would be established.  Mr Nelson concluded by requesting that authority be 

delegated to officers to agree drainage details, once received. 

Councillor Cooper noted that the site was located outside of the Conservation Area and 

AONB but highlighted that the images of the site did not communicate the difference in levels.  

He noted that the site was located at the top of the hill and therefore felt that the 

development would be too intrusive onto the countryside.  Whilst he recognised that this was 

an ‘on balance’ application, he felt the light pollution would be too great and the views on 

entering the town from Gloucester would be impacted. 

Councillor Cooper proposed that the application be refused contrary to officers 

recommendations and this was seconded by Councillor Haine.  Councillor Haine noted that 

the height of the floodlight poles was twice the height of a house, the site was located on the 

highest piece of ground and was in the vicinity of a Grade 1 listed church. 

Councillor Saul expressed a different view and thanked Mr Nelson for a comprehensive 

report.  He felt that sporting facilities, especially within school grounds, should be supported 

and he noted the adequate screening of the site.  He felt that the benefits available outweighed 

any potential harm and reminded the meeting that the District was in need of sports pitches, 

especially for hockey. 

Councillor Poskitt queried the light spill from the floodlights and Mr Nelson provided 

clarification on the correlation between the height of the poles and downward trajectory of 

the light.  With regards to a question raised regarding car parking, Mr Nelson stated that the 

Highways department had been consulted and were satisfied that sufficient capacity was 

available on the existing school site.  In addition, the community use would most likely operate 

outside of school hours, freeing up further car parking capacity. 

Councillor Haine reminded Members that the floodlights would be in use seven days a week 

until 2230 hours. 

Councillor Postan agreed that hockey facilities should be supported and advised Members that 

a good example of floodlighting existed at Carterton Recreational Ground. 

A proposal to refuse the application, contrary to officer’s recommendations, was put to the 

vote and was lost. 

Councillor Saul proposed that the application be approved in line with the report and this was 

seconded by Councillor Jackson. 

The officer recommendation of approval was then put to the vote and was carried.  

Approved 

60 Applications Determined under Delegated Powers and Appeal Decisions  

Members received a report outlining the decisions taken under delegated authority and 

officers responded to questions. 

 

Mrs Fettes then outlined the appeals that had taken place since the last meeting. 

 

Resolved that the report be noted. 

Page 5Page 7



Uplands Area Planning Sub-Committee 

07/March2022 

 

Prior to the conclusion of the meeting, Mrs Fettes took the opportunity to introduce two new 

members of the Planning team and advised that another member of staff would be re-joining 

towards the end of the month. 

 

The Meeting closed at 3.32 pm 

 

CHAIRMAN 

Page 6Page 8



 

WEST OXFORDSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

  

UPLANDS PLANNING SUB-COMMITTEE 

 

Date: 4th April 2022 

 

 
REPORT OF THE BUSINESS MANAGER-DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

Purpose: 

To consider applications for development details of which are set out in the following pages. 

 

Recommendations: 

To determine the applications in accordance with the recommendations of the Strategic Director. 

The recommendations contained in the following pages are all subject to amendments in the light of 

observations received between the preparation of the reports etc and the date of the meeting. 

 

List of Background Papers 
 
 

All documents, including forms, plans, consultations and representations on each application, but 

excluding any document, which in the opinion of the ‘proper officer’ discloses exempt information as 

defined in Section 1001 of the Local Government Act 1972.        

                                                 

Please note that: 

 

1. Observations received after the reports in this schedule were prepared will be summarised in a 

document which will be published late on the last working day before the meeting and available 

at the meeting or from www.westoxon.gov.uk/meetings  

 

 

Page 9

Agenda Item 4

http://www.westoxon.gov.uk/meetings


 
Page Application Number Address Officer 

 

11 - 15 

 

 

21/02185/HHD Broad Close, Little Tew Road, Church 

Enstone, Chipping Norton 

 

Briony Farmer 

 

16 - 19 

 

21/02186/LBC Broad Close, Little Tew Road, Church 

Enstone, Chipping Norton 

 

Briony Farmer 

 

20 - 32 

 

21/02570/FUL Land West Of Greenacres, Churchill Road, 

Kingham 

 

James Nelson 

 

33 - 39 

 

21/03794/FUL Lower Court Farm, Green End, Chadlington 

 

James Nelson 

 

Page 10



 

Application Number 21/02185/HHD 

Site Address Broad Close 

Little Tew Road 

Church Enstone 

Chipping Norton 

Oxfordshire 

OX7 4NL 

 

Date 23rd March 2022 

Officer Briony Farmer 

Officer Recommendations Refuse 

Parish Enstone Parish Council 

Grid Reference 437981 E       225198 N 

Committee Date 4th April 2022 

 

Location Map 

 

 
 

 
© Crown copyright and database rights 2016 Ordnance Survey 100024316  
 

 

Application Details: 

Demolition of existing porch. Construction of a single storey garden room to north elevation. Internal 

alterations to remove modern partition walls and block off 2 existing windows. 

Page 11



Applicant Details: 

Mr N Byrom 

Broad Close 

Little Tew Road 

Church Enstone 

Chipping Norton 

Oxfordshire 

OX7 4NL 

 

1 CONSULTATIONS 

 

Parish Council  Enstone Parish Council have no objections to this planning 

application. 

 

 

2 Third Party Representations 

 

2.1 No third party representations received to date. 

 

3 Applicants Case   

 

3.1 A Design and Access statement has been submitted in support of this application. Main points of this 

are summarised below. The documents submitted for this application are available to view on the West 

Oxfordshire District Council website.  

 

Planning Statement Summary 

 

3.2 The application site relates to a Grade II listed property which is a large detached property. 

 

3.3 The application includes the demolition of a front porch lean to which arguably will result in no loss 

of historic fabric. 

 

3.4 The application includes an extension which is arguably subserivent to the host dwelling. 

 

3.5 A Pre-Application enquiry was carried out which was idle and suggested that a justification statement 

might be required for the infilling of the courtyard. 

 

3.6 Arguably the courtyard, for majority of its life, has been enclosed with a wall across from the corner 

of the stable. 

 

4 PLANNING POLICIES 

 

OS2NEW Locating development in the right places 

OS4NEW High quality design 

H6NEW Existing housing 

EH9 Historic environment 

EH11 Listed Buildings 

EH12 Traditional Buildings 

NPPF 2021 

NATDES National Design Guide 

Page 12



DESGUI West Oxfordshire Design Guide 

The National Planning Policy framework (NPPF) is also a material planning consideration.  

 

5 PLANNING ASSESSMENT 

 

5.1 This planning application seeks householder planning consent for the demolition of the existing 

porch, construction of a single storey garden room to north elevation and internal alterations to 

remove modern partition walls and block of two existing windows at Broad Close, Little Tew Road, 

Church Enstone. The application site relates to a detached Grade II Listed Building situated in the North 

of the hamlet of Church Enstone. The application site is not situated within any areas of designated 

planning control. The application is before committee at the request of Cllr Haine. 

 

Principle 

 

5.2 The principle of the proposed demolition of the existing porch and construction of a single storey 

garden room in the siting as outlined in the plans is not considered acceptable as it will result in harm 

the historical significance of the Grade II Listed Building, which is contrary to policy. 

 

5.3 Policy EH11 of the West Oxfordshire Local Plan 2031, which is of particular significance, states that 

proposals for additions or alterations to a Listed Building (including partial demolition) or for the 

development within the curtilage of, or affecting the setting of, a Listed Building, will be permitted where 

it can be shown to: conserve or enhance the special architectural or historic interest of the buildings 

fabric, detailed features, appearance or character and setting; respect the buildings historic curtilage or 

context or its value within a group and/or its setting, including its historic landscape or townscape 

context; and retain the special interest that justifies its designation through appropriate design that is 

sympathetic both to the Listed Building and its setting and that of any adjacent heritage assets in terms 

of siting, size, scale, height, alignment, materials and finishes (including colour and texture), design and 

form. Therefore, the proposed development does not gain officers support due the harm it will cause to 

the Listed Building. 

 

5.4 Taking into account planning policy, other material considerations and the representations of 

interested parties, officers are of the opinion that the key considerations of the application are visual and 

heritage impacts and neighbouring amenity, which will delve into below. 

 

Site Design and Characteristics 

 

5.5 Broad Close is a detached Grade II Listed Building that dates from the early 18th century, late 18th 

century, altered in the 20th century; the listing covers the whole building.  

 

5.6 The proposed development is for the demolition of the existing porch which is situated on the 

North elevation of the host dwelling. The proposals include the construction of a single storey garden 

room on the North elevation which would increase the built form of the existing dwelling by infilling the 

courtyard, which would result in a rectangular plan form. The proposed garden room will have a flat 

roof form with a dual pitched lantern light feature. The proposed would be constructed using natural 

stone. This proposal will alter the appearance of the North, West and East elevations but the South 

elevation would remain unchanged. On the North elevation, the proposed would feature glazing in the 

form of three double doors in painted hardwood joinery. On the West elevation, the proposed would 

extend beyond the existing flank wall. Similarly, on the East elevation, the proposed would extend 

beyond the existing flank wall.  

 

Page 13



5.7 Due to the nature of this site, Listed Building Consent has also been sought for the proposed 

development. In the LBC application (21/02186/LBC), the Conservation Officer was consulted. The 

Conservation Officer depicts the existing plan form as the evidential significance and character. 

Therefore, by infilling the courtyard as proposed, to create a more rectangular form, it would erode the 

significance and alter the historic plan form. Taking this into consideration, on this initial merit, officers 

consider that the proposed is not supportable and further assessment will ensue. 

 

Visual and Heritage Impacts 

 

5.8 As mentioned above, Broad Close is a Grade II Listed building and therefore officers are required to 

take account of Section 66 of the Planning (Listed Building and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 as 

amended, which states that when assessing development that impacts upon a Listed Building, the Local 

Planning Authority will take special regard to the desirability of preserving the building or its setting, or 

any features of special architectural or historic interest that it possesses. Furthermore, Paragraph 199 of 

the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) states that when considering the impact of a proposed 

development on the significance of a designated heritage asset, great weight should be given to the 

asset's conservation. 

 

5.9 The proposed development will be partially visible within the street scene as the East elevation 

fronts Little Tew Road. Whilst officers consider that the impact of this upon the street scene would be 

minimal, the impact of the proposals on the host dwelling is a greater cause for concern. The siting and 

form of the proposed development is not considered to be sympathetic to the character and 

appearance of the host dwelling. The proposed development will increase the built form of the existing 

dwelling and will cause harm to the historical plan form of the Grade II Listed Building, which is 

considered to be part of its significance. Therefore, officers consider that the proposed development is 

unacceptable in terms of visual and heritage impacts and thus, cannot be supported. 

 

Neighbouring Amenity 

 

5.10 The impact of the development on residential amenity has been judiciously assessed. As outlined 

above, the proposed development will result in minimal changes to the street scene. The proposed 

extension will not increase the ridge height of the host dwelling and is only single storey. Whilst the 

proposal will increase the glazing on the North elevation, officers consider that due to the orientation of 

the host dwelling and distance to neighbouring properties it would not give rise to levels of harm such 

as overlooking or overbearing that would warrant the refusal of this application. Officers consider that 

the proposed development would unlikely to cause harm in respect of residential amenity. However, 

due to the other concerns with this application it still cannot be supported. 

 

Conclusion 

 

5.11 The paragraphs above provide a detailed assessment of the proposed development taking into 

consideration key planning considerations. In conclusion, officers consider that the proposal is not 

considered acceptable on its merits and is contrary to Policies OS2, OS4, H6, EH9, EH11 and EH12 of 

the West Oxfordshire Local Plan 2031, the West Oxfordshire Design Guide 2016 and the NPPF. For 

this reason, this application is recommended for refusal. 

 

6 REASONS FOR REFUSAL 

 

1. The proposed development, by reason of its siting, scale and massing would result in, and would 

create an incongruous plan-form that is harmful to the historical significance and character of the 

Page 14



Grade II Listed Building. As such, the proposed development is contrary to Section 66 of the Planning 

(Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990, Policies OS2, OS4, H6, EH9, EH11 and EH12 of 

the West Oxfordshire Local Plan 2031, the West Oxfordshire Design Guide 2016 and the relevant 

paragraphs of the NPPF. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Contact Officer: Briony Farmer 

Telephone Number: 01993 861672 

Date: 23rd March 2022 

Page 15



 
Application Number 21/02186/LBC 

Site Address Broad Close 

Little Tew Road 

Church Enstone 

Chipping Norton 

Oxfordshire 

OX7 4NL 

 

Date 23rd March 2022 

Officer Briony Farmer 

Officer Recommendations Refuse 

Parish Enstone Parish Council 

Grid Reference 437981 E       225198 N 

Committee Date 4th April 2022 

 

Location Map 

 

 
 

 
© Crown copyright and database rights 2016 Ordnance Survey 100024316  
 

 

Application Details: 

Demolition of existing porch. Construction of a single storey garden room to north elevation. Internal 

alterations to remove modern partition walls and block off 2 existing windows. 

Page 16



 

Applicant Details: 

Mr N Byrom 

Broad Close 

Little Tew Road 

Church Enstone 

Chipping Norton 

Oxfordshire 

OX7 4NL 

 

1 CONSULTATIONS 

 

Conservation Officer The Conservation Officer objects to this planning application. Part of 

the Grade II Listed Buildings evidential significance is the historic plan-

form. By infilling the courtyard with another structure, inevitably its 

evidential significance will start to erode/become obscured by the 

addition of residential paraphernalia, footing, plasterwork etc. The 

harm to the Listed Building is significant and is not offset by a public 

benefit.  

 

The full Conservation Officer report is available on the West 

Oxfordshire District Council's website. 

 

 

Parish Council Enstone Parish Council have no objections to this planning 

application. 

 

 

2 Third Party Representations 

 

2.1 No third party representations received to date. 

 

3 Applicants Case   

 

3.1 A Design and Access statement has been submitted in support of this application. Main points of this 

are summarised below. The documents submitted for this application are available to view on the West 

Oxfordshire District Council website.  

 

Planning Statement Summary 

 

3.2 The application site relates to a Grade II listed property which is a large detached property. 

 

3.3 The application includes the demolition of a front porch lean to which arguably will result in no loss 

of historic fabric. 

 

3.4 The application includes an extension which is arguably subserivent to the host dwelling. 

 

3.5 A Pre-Application enquiry was carried out which was idle and suggested that a justification statement 

might be required for the infilling of the courtyard. 

 

Page 17



3.6 Arguably the courtyard, for majority of its life, has been enclosed with a wall across from the corner 

of the stable. 

 

4 PLANNING POLICIES 

 

OS2NEW Locating development in the right places 

OS4NEW High quality design 

H6NEW Existing housing 

EH9 Historic environment 

EH11 Listed Buildings 

EH12 Traditional Buildings 

NPPF 2021 

NATDES National Design Guide 

DESGUI West Oxfordshire Design Guide 

The National Planning Policy framework (NPPF) is also a material planning consideration.  

 

5 PLANNING ASSESSMENT 

 

5.1 This planning application seeks Listed Building consent for the demolition of the existing porch, 

construction of a single storey garden room to north elevation and internal alterations to remove 

modern partition walls and block of two existing windows at Broad Close, Little Tew Road, Church 

Enstone. The application site relates to a detached Grade II Listed Building situated in the North of the 

hamlet of Church Enstone. The application site is not situated within any areas of designated planning 

control. The application is before committee at the request of Cllr Haine. 

 

Principle 

 

5.2 The principle of the proposed demolition of the existing porch and construction of a single storey 

garden room in the siting as outlined in the plans is not considered acceptable as it will result in harm 

the historical significance of the Grade II Listed Building, which is contrary to policy. 

 

Visual and Heritage Impacts 

 

5.3 As the proposed development involves changes to a Listed Building, officers are required to take 

account of Section 66 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990, as amended, 

which states that when assessing proposals that impact a Listed Building, the Local Planning Authority 

will have special regards to the desirability of preserving the building or its setting, or of any features of 

special architectural or historic interest which it possesses. Moreover, Paragraph 199 of the NPPF states 

that when considering the impact of a proposed development on the significance of a designated 

heritage asset, great weight should be given to the assets conservation.  

 

5.4 This application has been reviewed by a Conservation Officer from West Oxfordshire District 

Council's Planning Department. Within the review, the Conservation Officer depicts that a plan form of 

a building is frequently one of its most important characteristics. At Broad Close, the courtyard has 

always remained open, which is considered to be part of the buildings evidential/archaeological 

significance and character. The Conservation Officer states that "when a courtyard becomes infilled with 

another structure - irrespective whether it starts out in a glazed form, inevitably its evidential 

significance will start to erode/become obscured by the addition of residential paraphernalia, footing, 

plasterwork etc. The plan-form of the building will gradually erode and could be lost altogether in the 

future. The new plan-form would be a largely rectangular building".  

Page 18



 

5.5 As per the NPPF, any harm to designated heritage assets should be weighed against the public 

benefits of the proposal. In this case, the Conservation Officer deems that the proposed development 

would provide additional living accommodation for the existing occupiers which constitutes a private 

benefit. The proposed would significantly alter its historic plan form and would erode the appreciation 

and understanding of this designated heritage asset, to the detriment of its significance.  

 

5.6 Alternative proposals have been suggested by the Conservation Team which would not completely 

infill the courtyard and there are as follows: 

 

- Option A: where there is a historic precedent for extension. 

- Option B: a small scale glazed ethereal conservatory/orangery (least preferred) 

 

5.7 Taking into consideration the Conservation Officers comments, the proposed development will 

cause harm to the Listed Building, which is not offset by a public benefit and thus cannot be considered 

acceptable, nor supported.  

 

Conclusion 

 

5.8 The paragraphs above provide a detailed assessment of the proposed development. To conclude, 

officers consider that the proposal is not considered acceptable on its merits and is contrary to Policies 

EH9, EH11 and EH12 of the West Oxfordshire Local Plan 2031, the West Oxfordshire Design Guide 

2016 and the NPPF. For this reason, this application is recommended for refusal. 

 

6 REASON FOR REFUSAL 

 

1. The proposed development, by reason of its siting, scale and massing would result in, and would 

create an incongruous plan-form that is harmful to the historical significance and character of the 

Grade II Listed Building. As such, the proposed development is contrary to Section 66 of the 

Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990, policy EH11 of the West Oxfordshire 

Local Plan 2031, the West Oxfordshire Design Guide 2016 and the relevant paragraphs of the 

NPPF. 

 

 

 

Contact Officer: Briony Farmer 

Telephone Number: 01993 861672 

Date: 23rd March 2022 

Page 19



 
Application Number 21/02570/FUL 

Site Address Land West Of Greenacres 

Churchill Road 

Kingham 

Oxfordshire 

 

 

Date 23rd March 2022 

Officer James Nelson 

Officer Recommendations Approve 

Parish Kingham Parish Council 

Grid Reference 426302 E       224248 N 

Committee Date 4th April 2022 

 

Location Map 

 

 
 

 
© Crown copyright and database rights 2016 Ordnance Survey 100024316  
 

 

Application Details: 

Construction of dwelling together with associated outbuildings and landscaping. Close existing and 

formation of new vehicular access in revised position (amended plans). 

 

Page 20



Applicant Details: 

Mr And Mrs A Bratt 

C/o Agent 

 

1 CONSULTATIONS 

 

Thames Water No Comment Received. 

 

 

WODC Drainage Engineers Clarification of the proposed surface water drainage strategy servicing 

the dwelling and outbuildings is sought to ensure its suitability, as well 

as the total impermeable area.  

 

Soakaways may/may not be viable on site, given the geology for the 

postcode. However, this must first be proven by infiltration tests 

undertaken in the location of the proposed soakaway and in 

accordance with BRE365. 

 

 

Conservation Officer No objection to amended plans. 

 

 

OCC Highways No objection subject to conditions. 

 

 

WODC Env Health - Uplands Mr ERS Pollution Consultation No objection 

 

 

District Ecologist Requested further information- Preliminary Ecological Appraisal 

 

 

Parish Council Objection (see website for details). 

 

 

Parish Council Kingham Parish Council has discussed the amended plans and still 

opposes them. 

The modifications are not to size of the development, but to make it 

a little less enclosed and to reduce the overall height of the main 

building. Both of these are welcome but do not address our main 

concerns. The impact of the main house is reduced when viewed 

from the road by reduction in height but also by moving the main 

house so it lies further from the road. This means it lies even further 

outside the building line determined by the two houses on either side 

(Greenacres and East Lodge). It is germane that in the original 

proposal in 2017 to develop this site, it was proposed to build four 

houses, which would have meant building beyond this building line 

(though not by as much as currently proposed). This was opposed by 

both the Parish Council and the Planning Department at WODC. The 

plans were then modified and 3 houses proposed lying within the 

above building line and formed the basis for the planning permission 

Page 21



granted (17/03570/FUL) 

Our previous objections remain, namely that this a very large house 

on the relatively confined site, which inevitably extends into open 

countryside within the Cotswold AONB and it lies on the edge of the 

Kingham Conservation Area and well outside the buiding line 

determined by its immediate neighbours. The proposed swimming 

pool complex extends even further into open countryside and is an 

entirely inappropriate building in that context. 

It is thus contrary to the following policies 

1. NPPF 2018. Paragraph 170. Great weight should be given to 

conserving and enhancing landscape and scenic beauty in National 

Parks, the Broads and Areas of Outstanding Natural Beauty, which 

have the highest status of protection in relation to these issues. 

 

2. WODC Local Plan 2031. Adopted 2018 

Policy OS2 

General principles 

All development should: 

 Be of a proportionate and appropriate scale to its context 

having regard to the potential cumulative impact of 

development in the locality; 

 Form a logical complement to the existing scale and pattern 

of development and/or the character of the area; 

 In the AONB, give great weight to conserving landscape and 

scenic beauty and comply with national policy concerning 

major development; 

POLICY EH1: 

Cotswolds Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty 

In determining development proposals within the Cotswolds Area of 

Outstanding Natural Beauty (AONB) and proposals which would 

affect its setting, great weight will be given to conserving and 

enhancing the area's natural beauty, landscape and countryside, 

including its wildlife and heritage. This will include consideration of 

any harm to the contribution that the settlement makes to the scenic 

beauty of the AONB. 

POLICY EH10: Conservation areas 

Proposals for development in a Conservation Area or affecting the 

setting of a Conservation Area will be permitted where it can be 

shown to conserve or enhance the special interest, character, 

appearance and setting, specifically provided that: 

 the location, form, scale, massing, density, height, layout, 

landscaping, use, alignment and external appearance of the 

development conserves or enhances the special historic or 

architectural interest, character and appearance of the 

Conservation Area; 

 the development conserves or enhances the setting of the 

conservation Area and is not detrimental to views within, into 

or out of the Area; 

 the proposals are sympathetic to the original curtilage and 

pattern of development and to important green spaces, such 

Page 22



as paddocks, greens and gardens, and other gaps or spaces 

between buildings and the historic street pattern which make 

a positive contribution to the character in the Conservation 

Area; 

 the wider social and environmental effects generated by the 

development are compatible with the existing character and 

appearance of the Conservation Area; and - there would be 

no loss of, or harm to, any feature that makes a positive 

contribution to the special interest, character, or appearance 

of the Conservation Area, unless the development would 

make an equal or greater contribution. 

 

We would therefore recommend refusal of this application. 

 

 

2 REPRESENTATIONS 

 

2.1 Three occupiers of adjoining properties have written in opposition to the scheme, two objectors 

have provided further comments in light of the submission of revised plans. The points covered are 

summarised as follows:  

 

 The proposed development would not be sited in line with the adjacent properties and would 

not be consistent with the linear pattern of development in this part of the village; 

 It would not be contained within the existing settlement envelope and would consequently read 

as an encroachment into the open countryside;. 

 The proposal is excessive in terms of scale; 

 Harmful impact upon views from Village Green and approach to the Village resulting in harm to 

CA and AONB; 

 Inconsistant with precedent set by previous applications; 

 Increased light pollution in AONB; and  

 Inconsistancy over historic use and management of the site.  

 

3 APPLICANTS'S CASE  

 

3.1 The applicant has submitted a Design and Access Statement to support the application. The main 

points of which are summarised below. The full document is available to view on the Council's website.  

 

3.2. The proposal consists of a house in a sympathetic traditional design with master bedroom and five 

children's bedrooms. Additional accommodation includes a garage yard, garden store and a pool/gym 

building. 

 

3.3 There will be a small formal garden and the plan is to maintain the existing rural nature of the 

remaining ownership. It is envisaged that local materials and trades will be engaged to build the house.  

 

3.4 The objective has been to respond to the parameters imposed by the site and the character of the 

village. 

 

3.5 The main element is set back from the road within its private domain. Outbuildings are used to link 

the main house to the village street and create a build-up in scale from the edges of the plot. 

 

Page 23



3.6 The footprint of the main house relates to other properties within the village by keeping the overall 

span relatively narrow (6m side elements and 6.5m central element) to echo the vernacular language of 

the Cotswolds. The form of the house is fragmented and domestic in scale and has been designed to 

give the appearance of a traditional house which has evolved over time; an example being the 

outbuilding along the front boundary which has been designed to appear as if though it has always 

formed part of the street scene. 

 

3.7 The proportions and siting of the house have been carefully considered to preserve the semi rural 

character of the entrance into the village from Churchill Road. The main house of the development is 

respectfully set back from the main road behind a largely soft frontage consisting of both existing mature 

trees and additional vegetation.  

 

3.8 Following a productive dialogue with the conservation officer, Bryan Martin, the proposals have been 

revised further; principally to reduce the overall height of the house. Though reduced in height, the 

general proportions of the house were maintained. The diminutive end result produces something more 

recognisable as a 'farmhouse' and less 'grand manor' in style. 

 

4 PLANNING POLICIES 

 

OS1NEW Presumption in favour of sustainable development 

OS2NEW Locating development in the right places 

OS3NEW Prudent use of natural resources 

OS4NEW High quality design 

H1NEW Amount and distribution of housing 

H2NEW Delivery of new homes 

H4NEW Type and mix of new homes 

T1NEW Sustainable transport 

T3NEW Public transport, walking and cycling 

T4NEW Parking provision 

EH1 Cotswolds AONB 

EH2 Landscape character 

EH3 Biodiversity and Geodiversity 

EH7 Flood risk 

EH8 Environmental protection 

EH9 Historic environment 

EH10 Conservation Areas 

BC1NEW Burford-Charlbury sub-area 

DESGUI West Oxfordshire Design Guide 

NPPF 2021 

The National Planning Policy framework (NPPF) is also a material planning consideration.  

 

5 PLANNING ASSESSMENT  

 

Introduction 

 

5.1 This application seeks consent for the construction of dwelling together with associated outbuildings 

and landscaping and formation of new vehicular access at Land West of Greenacres, Churchill Road, 

Kingham. The application site is currently undeveloped land and a small section of the site lies within the 

Kingham Conservation Area, the entire site is considered to be within the setting of the Conservation 

Page 24



Area. The proposed dwelling would also be located within the Cotswolds AONB. The application was 

deferred for a members site visit.  

 

5.2 Taking into account planning policy, other material considerations and the representations of 

interested parties, your officers consider that the key considerations for the application are principle, 

siting, design and form, visual/heritage impact, neighbourly amenity, highways impacts, ecology and 

drainage impacts.  

 

Planning History 

 

5.3 The planning history on the site is summarised as follows:  

 

 17/03570/FUL- Erection of three dwellings with associated parking and new access (amended 

description). Approved.  

 

Principle  

 

5.4 Section 38 (6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires applications for planning 

permission be determined in accordance with the development plan unless material considerations 

indicate otherwise. Section 70 (2) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 provides that the Local 

Planning Authority shall have regard to the provisions of the development plan, so far as material to the 

application, and to any other material considerations.  The revised NPPF reiterates the pre-eminence of 

the local plan as the starting point for decision-making (Paragraph 2 of the NPPF). The NPPF is a 

material consideration in any assessment and makes clear in Paragraph 12 that the presumption in favour 

of sustainable development does not change the statutory status of the development plan as the starting 

point for decision-making. Therefore, development coming forward must be determined in accordance 

with the Local Plan. 

 

5.5 The application site sits within Kingham, which is identified as a village under West Oxfordshire 

Local Plan Policy OS2. In the villages, new dwellings can be permitted where they are of a proportionate 

and appropriate scale to their context, having regard to the potential cumulative impact of development 

in the locality and form a logical complement to the existing scale and pattern of development and/or 

the character of the area. Policy H2 states that new dwellings will be permitted in certain circumstances 

including on undeveloped land within the built up area provided that the proposal is in accordance with 

the other policies in the plan and in particular the general principles set out in Policy OS2.  

 

5.6 The general principles of OS2 that have particular relevance to this application are that development 

should:- 

 

 Be of a proportionate and appropriate scale to its context having regard to the potential cumulative 

impact of development in the locality; 

 Form a logical complement to the existing scale and pattern of development and/or the character of 

the area; 

 Be compatible with adjoining uses and not have a harmful impact on the amenity of existing 

occupants; 

 As far as is reasonably possible protect or enhance the local landscape and the setting of the 

settlement/s; 

 Conserve and enhance the natural, historic and built environment; and 

 In the AONB, give great weight to conserving landscape and scenic beauty 

 

Page 25



5.7 The provisions of Policy BC1 are also relevant to this application. The Burford-Charlbury Sub-Area 

Strategy outlines that despite the relative constraints placed on development by the Cotswolds AONB 

designation, delivery of homes should reach 774 by the end of the plan period in accordance with H1. 

Whilst Burford and Charlbury (as rural service centres) will be the focus for modest levels of new 

development, elsewhere development should be steered to the larger villages in the sub-area, such as 

Kingham.  

 

5.8 As such, the principle of provision of a new dwelling in this location is acceptable subject to 

consideration of the resultant visual, neighbourly amenity, highways, drainage and ecology impacts being 

assessed against the adopted Local Plan. 

 

Siting, Design and Form 

 

5.9 Local Plan Policy OS4 states that new development should respect the historic, architectural and 

landscape character of the locality. Section 12 of the revised NPPF reinforces the fundamental nature of 

good design to sustainable development and states that 'development that is not well designed should be 

refused, especially where it fails to reflect local design policies' (Para. 134).  

 

5.10 The proposed dwelling would be sited centrally in the plot and well set back from the road. It 

would be oriented to align with the shape of the plot and therefore set at a slight angle to the highway. 

The building itself would take a neo-vernacular form comprised of a main block reaching 9.8 metres in 

height with two storey wings on either side and front and rear projecting gables ranging in depth. The 

plans also include a pool building and outbuildings along the eastern side of the plot. The application has 

been amended to reduce the floor levels, thereby dropping the ridge height by over 1 metre, lowering 

the proposed eaves height and reducing the height of outriding limbs. The dwelling would be 

constructed of natural Cotswold stone and stone slates with timber framed casement and sash 

windows. The visual impact of the proposed development is considered in the following section.  

 

Visual and Heritage Impact  

 

5.11 Within a conservation area, officers are required to take account of section 72(1) of the Planning 

(Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 as amended, which states that, with respect to 

buildings or other land in a conservation area, special attention shall be paid to the desirability of 

preserving or enhancing the character or appearance of that area.  Further the paragraphs of section 16 

'Conserving and enhancing the historic environment ' of the NPPF are relevant to consideration of the 

application. The provisions of paragraph 176 of the NPPF are acknowledged as regards the weight to 

given to be given to conserving the landscape and scenic beauty in the AONB. 

 

5.12 The existing site is largely screened by mature planting along the northern boundary restricting its 

prominence in the street scene. The rural character of the site itself provides some contribution to the 

setting of the village and Conservation Area by creating a semi-agricultural soft edge to the village as the 

land falls to the east/south east. However, given the site is largely screened from public view, its 

contribution to the setting of the village and Conservation Area is limited and not considered so 

significant as to preclude any residential development on the site.   

 

5.13 The proposed dwelling takes a neo-vernacular form and would be constructed in locally 

characteristic materials. Whilst a significant amount of built form is proposed, the set down heights of 

side and rear elements and use of hipped forms will reduce the visual prominence of the building, 

thereby avoiding harm to and preserving the setting of the village and conservation area. The proposed 

Page 26



outbuildings take simple, low-lying forms that will appear in keeping with both the host dwelling and the 

established character of the village.   

 

5.14 The siting of the house approximately 30 metres back from the road is considered appropriate in 

this context as due to the falling levels on site, by positioning the dwelling further south in the plot, its 

perceived height will be reduced. This means that it would not appear overly prominent in the street 

scene or views in to the Conservation Area from the east and south east, including from Churchill Road. 

Concerns have been raised by neighbours and the Parish Council that the build footprint extends too far 

to the south, resulting in an illogical pattern of development. Officers consider that whilst the main block 

of the house is set further south than neighbouring dwellings on either side, the vicinity does exhibit a 

loose knit character meaning that this slight variation would not appear incongruous or illogical. Further, 

the proposed pool building would result in little visual impact due to its height and would be sited 

adjacent to an existing building to the east.   

 

5.15 Turning to the wider visual impact of the dwelling in the landscape, officers recognise that the 

proposed dwelling will be partially visible in approached in the village from the east. It impact will be 

somewhat screened by the existing 'Greenacres' to the east and given the site will be viewed in a 

residential context within the built up area of Kingham. Further, the proposed large glazed elements face 

inwards within the site and so are unlikely to result in significant light pollution to the AONB. 

Therefore, no material harm to the Cotswolds AONB is identified in light of the amended plans.  

 

5.16 The application is therefore considered by officers to accord with Local Plan Policies OS2, OS4, 

EH1, EH2, EH9 and EH10 and is considered acceptable in visual impact terms.  

 

Neighbourly Amenity 

 

5.17 Local Plan Policy OS2 states that new development should be compatible with adjoining uses and 

not have a harmful impact on the amenity of existing occupants. The importance of minimising adverse 

impacts upon the amenity of future and neighbouring occupiers is reiterated in Policy OS4, the West 

Oxfordshire Design Guide and NPPF paragraph 185.  

 

5.18 With regard to the impact on neighbouring amenity, your officers consider that due to the siting of 

the dwelling in relation to its neighbours no significant impact will result upon neighbouring occupiers by 

way of overlooking, overbearing or loss of light. In light of this assessment, your officers consider that 

the proposal is acceptable in terms of neighbourly amenity. The building will provide acceptable levels of 

amenity for future occupiers.  

 

Highways Impacts 

 

5.19 Local Plan Policy OS2 states that new development should be provided with safe vehicular access 

and safe and convenient pedestrian access to supporting services and facilities. The Local Highways 

Authority have been consulted on the application and stated that the proposal would not have a 

significant detrimental impact in terms of highway safety and convenience on the adjacent highway 

network subject to the suggested conditions (see Section 6). Therefore, officers consider that the 

scheme would be acceptable in this regard.  

 

Ecology Impacts  

 

5.20 Local Plan Policy EH3 states that the biodiversity of West Oxfordshire shall be protected and 

enhanced to achieve an overall net gain in biodiversity. Following consultation with the Council's 

Page 27



ecologist, a Preliminary Ecological Appraisal (PEA) has been submitted. The report details that the site is 

of low ecological interest as it mainly comprises poor semi-improved grassland. It concludes that no 

further surveys are necessary subject to implementation of the report's recommendations. The 

proposed development is therefore considered acceptable in ecological terms subject to the suggestion 

conditions in Section 6 of the report.  

 

Drainage Impacts  

 

5.21 Following consultation with the Council's drainage engineers, the applicant has provided updated 

information relating to the proposed drainage arrangement. The Council's drainage engineers are 

currently reviewing the additional information submitted. Officers consider that these technical details 

are likely to be overcome and therefore request delegated authority to resolve these matters subject to 

Members discretion.  

 

Conclusion  

 

5.22 In light of the above assessment, the application is considered to accord with West Oxfordshire 

Local Plan Policies OS1, OS2, OS3, OS4, H1, H2, H4, T1, T3, T4, EH1, EH2, EH3, EH7, EH8, EH9, EH10 

and BC1, the NPPF 2021 and the West Oxfordshire Design Guide and is therefore recommended to 

Members for conditional approval subject to the proposed drainage matters being resolved by officers 

on a delegated basis. 

 

6 CONDITIONS  

 

1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years from the date 

of this permission. 

 

REASON: To comply with the requirements of Section 91 of the Town & Country Planning Act 1990 as 

amended by Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act, 2004. 

 

2. The development shall be carried out in accordance with the plan(s) accompanying the application as 

modified by the revised plan(s) deposited on 14.01.2022. 

 

REASON: The application details have been amended by the submission of revised details. 

 

3. The external walls shall be constructed of natural local stone in accordance with a sample panel which 

shall be erected on site and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority before any external 

walls are commenced and thereafter be retained until the development is completed. 

 

REASON: To safeguard the character and appearance of the area.  

 

4. The roof(s) of the building(s) shall be covered with materials, a sample of which shall be submitted to 

and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority before any roofing commences. 

 

REASON: To safeguard the character and appearance of the area.   

 

5. Notwithstanding details contained in the application, detailed specifications and drawings of all 

external windows and doors to include elevations of each complete assembly at a minimum 1:20 scale 

and sections of each component at a minimum 1:5 scale and including details of all materials, finishes and 

colours shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority before that 

Page 28



architectural feature is commissioned/erected on site. The development shall be carried out in 

accordance with the approved details.  

 

REASON: To ensure the architectural detailing of the buildings reflects the established character of the 

area. 

 

6. The window and door frames shall be recessed a minimum distance of 75mm from the face of the 

building unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 

 

REASON: To ensure the architectural detailing of the building reflects the established character of the 

locality.   

 

7. Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted Development) 

(England) Order 2015 (or any Order revoking and re-enacting that Order with or without modification), 

no development permitted under Schedule 2, Part 1, Classes A, B and C shall be carried out other than 

that expressly authorised by this permission. 

  

REASON: Control is needed to ensure the established character of the locality is protected.   

 

8. No dwelling hereby approved shall be occupied until the means to ensure a maximum water 

consumption of 110 litres use per person per day, in accordance with policy OS3, has been complied 

with for that dwelling and retained in perpetuity thereafter. 

 

REASON: To improve the sustainability of the dwellings in accordance with policy OS3 of the West 

Oxfordshire Local Plan 2031. 

 

9. The car parking areas (including where appropriate the marking out of parking spaces) shown on the 

approved plans shall be constructed before occupation of the development and thereafter retained and 

used for no other purpose. 

 

REASON: To ensure that adequate car parking facilities are provided in the interests of road safety. 

 

10. The means of access between the land and the highway shall be constructed, laid out, surfaced, lit 

and drained in accordance with details that have first been submitted to and approved in writing by the 

Local Planning Authority and all ancillary works therein specified shall be undertaken in accordance with 

the said specification before first occupation of the dwellings hereby approved. 

 

REASON: To ensure a safe and adequate access. 

 

11. On commencement of the development the proposed access shown on the approved plans shall be 

formed and the existing access closed by the erection of a post and rail fence or native hedgerow 

planting. 

  

REASON: To ensure a safe and adequate access.   

 

12. The dwelling shall not be occupied until space has been laid out within the curtilage of the dwelling 

to enable vehicles to enter, turn round and leave the curtilage in forward gear. 

  

REASON: In the interest of road safety. 

 

Page 29



13. The development shall be completed in accordance with the recommendations in Section 4 of the 

Preliminary Ecological Appraisal report dated 29.09.2021 prepared by Cotswold Wildlife Surveys. All the 

recommendations shall be implemented in full according to the specified timescales, unless otherwise 

agreed in writing by the local planning authority.  

  

REASON: To ensure that protected and priority species and habitats are protected in accordance with 

The Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2017 (as amended), the Wildlife and Countryside 

Act 1981 (as amended), Circular 06/2005, paragraphs 174, 179 and 180 of the NPPF, Local Plan Policy 

EH3 and in order for the Council to comply with Section 40 of the Natural Environment and Rural 

Communities Act 2006. 

 

14. Before the erection of any external walls, details of the provision of integrated bat boxes (e.g. bat 

tubes/bricks on south or southeast-facing elevations), integrated bird boxes (e.g. house sparrow terrace, 

starling box or swift brick on the north or east-facing elevations) within the walls of the new buildings 

and hedgehog gaps/holes through any new fencing or walls shall be submitted to the local planning 

authority for approval. The details shall include a technical drawing showing the types of features, their 

locations within the site and their positions on the elevations of the buildings, and a timetable for their 

provision. The approved details shall be implemented before the dwelling hereby approved is first 

occupied and thereafter permanently retained and maintained.  

  

REASON: To provide biodiversity enhancements in accordance with Local Plan Policy EH3, paragraphs 

174, 179 and 180 of the NPPF and for the council to meet its statutory duty under Section 40 of the 

Natural Environment and Rural Communities Act 2006. 

 

15. Prior to any development above slab level, a scheme for the landscaping of the site, including the 

retention of any existing trees and shrubs and planting of additional trees and hedge enhancements, shall 

be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  The scheme shall be 

implemented as approved within 12 months of the commencement of the approved development or as 

otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority and thereafter be maintained in accordance 

with the approved scheme. In the event of any of the trees or shrubs so planted dying or being seriously 

damaged or destroyed within 5 years of the completion of the development, a new tree or shrub of 

equivalent number and species, shall be planted as a replacement and thereafter properly maintained.  

  

REASON: To ensure the safeguarding of the character and landscape of the area during and post 

development. 

 

INFORMATIVES:- 

 

1. Please note works are required to be carried out within the public highway, the applicant shall not 

commence such work before formal approval has been granted by Oxfordshire County Council by 

way of legal agreement between the applicant and Oxfordshire County Council. 

 

2. Please note that planning permission does not override the statutory protection afforded to species 

protected under the terms of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 (as amended) and the 

Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2017 (as amended), or any other relevant 

legislation such as the Wild Mammals Act 1996 (including hedgehogs) and Protection of Badgers Act 

1992.  

 

With regard to the condition for bird and bat boxes, it is recommended that integrated boxes are 

used as permanent features of the new buildings that require no maintenance (i.e. built into walls). 

Page 30



A house sparrow terrace contains 3 nesting compartments and several swift bricks (at least 3) 

should be incorporated as both of these species nest in colonies. The applicant and their architect 

should note the advice of Swift Conservation with regard to the installation of the swift bricks 

available at https://www.swift-conservation.org/Nestboxes&Attraction.htm#Built%20in Generally, 

bat boxes should be installed into south-facing walls and bird boxes into northern elevations away 

from doors and windows (to avoid accumulations of droppings).  

 

For information on hedgehog gaps/holes in fences and walls, please refer to 

https://www.hedgehogstreet.org/helphedgehogs/link-your-garden/ 

 

Applicants are strongly encouraged to minimise energy demand, and take climate action, through fitting: 

 

 Electricity-fed heating systems and renewable energy, for example solar panels and heat pumps; 

thus avoiding fossil fuel based systems, for example gas boilers 

 Wall, ceiling, roof, and floor insulation, and ventilation  

 High performing triple glazed windows and airtight frames 

 Energy and water efficient appliances and fittings 

 Water recycling measures 

 Sustainably and locally sourced materials  

 

For further guidance, please visit:  

 

https://www.westoxon.gov.uk/planning-and-building/planning-permission/make-a-planning-

application/sustainability-standards-checklist/  

 

https://www.westoxon.gov.uk/environment/climate-action/how-to-achieve-net-zero-carbon-homes/ 

 

 

 

 

Notes to applicant 

 

 1 Please note works are required to be carried out within the public highway, the applicant shall 

not commence such work before formal approval has been granted by Oxfordshire County 

Council by way of legal agreement between the applicant and Oxfordshire County Council. 

 

 2 Please note that planning permission does not override the statutory protection afforded to 

species protected under the terms of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 (as amended) and 

the Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2017 (as amended), or any other relevant 

legislation such as the Wild Mammals Act 1996 (including hedgehogs) and Protection of Badgers 

Act 1992.  

 

With regard to the condition for bird and bat boxes, it is recommended that integrated boxes 

are used as permanent features of the new buildings that require no maintenance (i.e. built into 

walls). A house sparrow terrace contains 3 nesting compartments and several swift bricks (at 

least 3) should be incorporated as both of these species nest in colonies. The applicant and their 

architect should note the advice of Swift Conservation with regard to the installation of the 

swift bricks available at https://www.swift-

conservation.org/Nestboxes&Attraction.htm#Built%20in Generally, bat boxes should be 

installed into south-facing walls and bird boxes into northern elevations away from doors and 

Page 31



windows (to avoid accumulations of droppings).  

 

For information on hedgehog gaps/holes in fences and walls, please refer to 

https://www.hedgehogstreet.org/helphedgehogs/link-your-garden/ 

 

 3 Applicants are strongly encouraged to minimise energy demand, and take climate action, 

through fitting: 

 

 Electricity-fed heating systems and renewable energy, for example solar panels and heat pumps; 

thus avoiding fossil fuel based systems, for example gas boilers 

 Wall, ceiling, roof, and floor insulation, and ventilation  

 High performing triple glazed windows and airtight frames 

 Energy and water efficient appliances and fittings 

 Water recycling measures 

 Sustainably and locally sourced materials  

 

For further guidance, please visit:  

 

https://www.westoxon.gov.uk/planning-and-building/planning-permission/make-a-planning-

application/sustainability-standards-checklist/  

 

https://www.westoxon.gov.uk/environment/climate-action/how-to-achieve-net-zero-carbon-homes/ 

 

 

Contact Officer: James Nelson 

Telephone Number: 01993 861712 

Date: 23rd March 2022 

Page 32



 
Application Number 21/03794/FUL 

Site Address Lower Court Farm 

Green End 

Chadlington 

Chipping Norton 

Oxfordshire 

OX7 3NQ 

 

Date 23rd March 2022 

Officer James Nelson 

Officer Recommendations Refuse 

Parish Chadlington Parish Council 

Grid Reference 432367 E       221158 N 

Committee Date 4th April 2022 

 

Location Map 

 

 
 

 
© Crown copyright and database rights 2016 Ordnance Survey 100024316  
 

 

Application Details: 

Change of use of land from agricultural to domestic along with the formation of a tennis court, erection 

of a green house and associated landscaping. 

Page 33



Applicant Details: 

Luke Taylor 

Lower Court Farm 

Green End 

Chadlington 

Chipping Norton 

Oxfordshire 

OX7 3NQ 

 

1 CONSULTATIONS 

 

Parish Council  Chadlington PC - No objection. 

 

 

Conservation Officer  No Comment Received. 

 

 

ERS Env. Consultation Sites  No Comment Received. 

 

 

2 REPRESENTATIONS 

 

2.1 No third party representations have been received.  

 

3 Applicant's Case  

 

3.1 The applicant has submitted a Planning Statement to support the application. The main points of 

which are summarised below. The full document is available to view on the Council's website.  

 

3.2. The land the subject of this application is a disused area of farm yard that has previously housed a 

horse walker and been used for overspill parking and storage. The yard was formerly adjacent to a 

series of modern farm buildings, which detracted from the setting of the other traditional vernacular 

buildings and the broader setting of Lower Court Farm. 

 

3.3 The design has been carefully conceived and attention to detail has been given in respect of the siting 

and how this best sits with the house, having regard to the heritage assets significance, and its landscape.  

 

3.4The surrounds of the tennis court will be sensitively and discretely landscaped with nonintrusive 

paving, grassed areas, Cotswold stone walling and planting of mixed fruit trees and native hedging. The 

immediate surrounds of the court adjacent to the lane will be enclosed/screened by mixed fruiting trees 

and existing hedgerows. 

 

3.5 A large part of the premise behind the proposals, aside from the landscaping enhancements to the 

grounds associated with what is a large house in otherwise modest grounds, is to enhance the 

enjoyment of the dwelling for the owners and to provide a facility for those visiting the site and using 

the recently permitted holiday let. 

 

3.6 It is considered that the proposed location would ensure a good relationship with the rest of the site 

and buildings whilst not influencing the heritage assets of importance. The site area is well defined and is 

physically defined by the lane that leads to the property, which will be heavily landscape as part of the 

Page 34



proposals; having a twofold benefit of screening the use to preserve the occupants' privacy but also 

softening the appearance of the modern buildings on the approach to the site.  

 

3.7 The design approach taken is to construct a facility which is sympathetic to the local landscape 

character, and one which responds appropriately to the existing architecture within the locality 

(particularly the design and materials of the existing house), using natural stone for means of enclosure 

and base of the green house and planting native trees and hedgerows. 

 

3.8 We trust Officers will support these proposals. 

 

4 PLANNING POLICIES 

 

OS2NEW Locating development in the right places 

OS4NEW High quality design 

EH1 Cotswolds AONB 

EH9 Historic environment 

EH11 Listed Buildings 

EH13 Historic landscape character 

NPPF 2021 

DESGUI West Oxfordshire Design Guide 

The National Planning Policy framework (NPPF) is also a material planning consideration.  

 

5 PLANNING ASSESSMENT  

 

Introduction 

 

5.1 This application seeks consent for a material change in the use of land from agricultural to domestic 

along with the formation of a tennis court, erection of a greenhouse and associated landscaping at 

Lower Court Farm, Green End, Chadlington. The site sits in the south-western edge of the village of 

Chadlington and is located within the Cotswolds AONB. Lower Court Farmhouse (to which the 

application relates) is Grade II* Listed. The application was deferred for a members site visit.  

 

5.2 Your officers consider that the key planning considerations for this application are the principle of 

development, siting design and scale, impact upon the setting of the Grade II* Listed farmhouse, impact 

upon the Cotswolds AONB, neighbourly amenity and highways matters.  

 

Relevant Planning History 

 

20/02509/FUL- 'Alterations and extensions to Lower Court Farmhouse. Conversion of attached and 

detached farm buildings to provide principal and ancillary residential accommodation. Demolition of 

modern farm buildings. Erection of new garaging, estate office and service yard and associated 

landscaping (amended plans)'. WITHDRAWN.  

 

20/02510/LBC- 'Alterations and extensions to Lower Court Farmhouse. Change of use of attached and 

detached farm buildings to provide principal and ancillary residential accommodation. Demolition of 

modern farm buildings (amended plans)'. WITHDRAWN.  

 

21/00963/FUL & 21/00964/LBC-' Alterations and extensions together with conversion of attached farm 

buildings to enlarge existing farmhouse.' APPROVED.  

 

Page 35



21/00967/FUL- 'Conversion of traditional farm buildings to form one holiday lets. Formation of 

swimming pool and associated landscaping.' APPROVED.  

 

21/00968/LBC- 'Demolition of modern farm buildings. Internal and external alterations to convert 

traditional farm buildings to form one holiday let together with associated works.' APPROVED.  

 

21/00998/FUL- 'Erection of two new replacement agricultural buildings with repairs and alterations to 

existing barn.' APPROVED. 

 

21/00999/LBC- 'Demolition of existing portal frame agricultural buildings and erection of two new 

agricultural buildings together with repairs and alterations to existing barn.' APPROVED. 

 

Principle  

 

5.3 Section 38 (6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires applications for planning 

permission be determined in accordance with the development plan unless material considerations 

indicate otherwise. Section 70 (2) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 provides that the Local 

Planning Authority shall have regard to the provisions of the development plan, so far as material to the 

application, and to any other material considerations. The revised NPPF reiterates the pre-eminence of 

the local plan as the starting point for decision-making (Paragraph 2 of the NPPF). The NPPF is a 

material consideration in any assessment and makes clear in Paragraph 12 that the presumption in favour 

of sustainable development does not change the statutory status of the development plan as the starting 

point for decision-making. Therefore, development coming forward must be determined in accordance 

with the Local Plan. 

 

5.4 The West Oxfordshire Local Plan 2031 has no specific policy relating to the change of use of 

agricultural land to domestic uses. Therefore, Local Plan Policy OS2 provides the starting point for 

assessment of the principle of development.  

 

5.5 Chadlington is defined as a village within the settlement hierarchy (Policy OS2) where limited 

development which "respects the village character and local distinctiveness and would help to maintain 

the vitality of these communities" may be suitable. This is subject to the general principles of OS2, those 

with particular relevance to this scheme are that all development should: 

 

 Be of a proportionate and appropriate scale to its context having regard to the potential 

cumulative impact of development in the locality; 

 Form a logical complement to the existing scale and pattern of development and/or the 

character of the area; 

 Be compatible with adjoining uses and not have a harmful impact on the amenity of existing 

occupants; 

 As far as is reasonably possible protect or enhance the local landscape and the setting of the 

settlement/s; 

 Be provided with safe vehicular access and safe and convenient pedestrian access to supporting 

services and facilities; 

 Conserve and enhance the natural, historic and built environment; and 

 In the AONB, give great weight to conserving landscape and scenic beauty. 

 

5.6In addition to the general principles listed, officers consider that policies OS4 (high quality design), 

EH1 (Cotswolds AONB), EH9 (historic environment), EH11 (listed buildings) and EH13 (Historic 

Page 36



landscape character) are particularly relevant to this application given the proximity of the site to the 

Grade II* listed farmhouse and location within the AONB.  

 

5.7 The principle of the proposed material change in the use of the land and associated work is 

therefore considered acceptable in principle subject to the scheme demonstrating compliance with the 

general principles as well as the development plan when read as a whole.  

 

Siting, Design and Scale  

 

5.8 Local Plan Policy OS4 states that new development should respect the historic, architectural and 

landscape character of the locality. Section 12 of the revised NPPF reinforces the fundamental nature of 

good design to sustainable development and states that 'development that is not well designed should be 

refused, especially where it fails to reflect local design policies' (Para. 134). 

 

5.9 In terms of siting, the proposed tennis court is sited adjacent to the site access and around 60 

metres north east of the main house. The effect of the proposed siting is that the proposed tennis court 

would be prominent in views from Green End running to the east of the site, which forms a public right 

of way and serves as access to neighbouring properties. Officers therefore consider that the proposed 

development exhibits the potential to impact upon the setting of the heritage asset when viewed from 

the east. This matter will be considered fully in the following section of the report.  

 

5.10 The proposed tennis court would be hard surfaced with a green finish and chain link fencing 

reaching a height of 2.6m at each service end. The site would be bounded by stone walling to the west 

side with hedging and planting proposed in the eastern half of the site. A dual pitched greenhouse of 

traditional form and design is also proposed within the existing garden area (officers note that this lies 

outside of the submitted red-line site plan). The visual impact of the proposed development is 

considered in the following sections.   

 

Heritage Impact 

 

5.11 The site sits immediately north east of the Grade II* listed Lower Court Farmhouse and therefore 

exhibits the potential to impact its setting. Officers are therefore required to take account of section 66 

of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 as amended which states that when 

considering development which affects a listed building, the local planning authority shall have special 

regard to the desirability of preserving the building or its setting or of any features of special 

architectural or historic interest which it possesses. The direct effect of the proposed development 

upon the significance of the identified designated heritage assets must be considered in accordance with 

Paragraphs 199, 200 and 202 of the NPPF and Local Plan Policies EH9, EH11 and EH13.  

 

5.12 The site is set on the edge of the village and faces open countryside with the Evenlode Valley 

stretching to the south. The existing site when viewed from Green End running to the east, exhibits a 

distinctly rural and agricultural character. The listed farmhouse has been used in connection with farming 

since the first half of the 19th century and is set amongst a group of vernacular and modern farm 

buildings, which partially obscure the main house when viewed from the east. The former farm buildings 

are currently in the process of being re-developed under the application references listed in section 5.2 

of this report but will retain their agricultural character due to the sensitive approach taken in previous 

proposals to retain their existing character. Therefore, due to the present appearance of the wider 

Lower Court Farm site, when viewed from Green End, the farmhouse sits in a distinctly rural and 

agricultural setting characteristic of its historic association with farming.  

 

Page 37



5.13 The proposed siting of the court and associated hard landscaping works  facilitate the material 

change of use would extend the formal garden of the main house adjacent to Green End and beyond the 

range of buildings associated with the house. This encroachment would relate poorly to the existing 

garden area and built development on site and result in a formal domestic appearance and setting to the 

listed farmhouse when viewed from Green End. This would undermine the established rural and 

agricultural surroundings of the heritage asset which officers consider forms a positive contribution to 

its setting.  The erosion of the established character caused by the siting and design of the proposed 

tennis court and associated works would visually dominate the open space directly fronting Green End 

and therefore fundamentally affect its present rural and agricultural character to the detriment of the 

setting of the main house and the established character of the street scene. The proposal therefore 

conflicts with Policy OS2 in that it fails to respect the existing character of the area resulting in harm to 

the setting of designated heritage asset. 

 

5.14 Before applying an overall planning balance, a heritage balance must be carried out under paragraph 

202 of the NPPF under which the harms to the setting of the designated heritage asset in isolation 

should be weighed against any public benefits that would result from the proposal. The harm arising 

from the proposal is considered to be 'less than substantial'. This is not to minimise the affect of the 

development upon the setting of the heritage asset but merely recognises that the harm would not 

materially impact upon the fabric of the building itself. Officers consider that the benefits accrued from 

the proposed development would be largely private in nature and small scale public benefits associated 

with the construction process would result in little appreciable public benefit. Therefore, officers 

conclude that these benefits do not outweigh the identified harm to the designated heritage asset, which 

must be afforded great weight in this balance under NPPF Paragraph 199.  In light of this assessment, the 

proposed development results in deleterious impact upon the setting of the Grade II* Listed Lower 

Court Farmhouse in conflict with Local Plan Policies EH9, EH11 and EH13 and guidance contained in the 

NPPF. The proposal also fails to relate successfully to its context as required by the general principles of 

Policy OS2 and the requirements for good design in Policy OS4, the West Oxfordshire Design Guide 

and Section 12 of the NPPF and is therefore unacceptable in heritage and visual impact terms.  

 

Impact upon the Cotswolds AONB 

 

5.15 The site lies within the Cotswolds AONB, a nationally important designation, where great weight 

should be given to conserving and enhancing landscape and scenic beauty in accordance with the 

provisions of paragraph 176 of the NPPF. This duty is reflected in Policy EH1 of the Local Plan. 

 

5.16 Officers consider that whilst the proposed development would result in a negative transformation 

of the character of the street scene as viewed from Green Lane (resulting in harm to the setting of the 

Grade II* main house), the change would be screened in wider views and therefore only perceived in its 

immediate context. Therefore, the wider landscape impact of the change would be negligible and no 

material harm to landscape and scenic beauty in the AONB is identified.   

 

Residential Amenity  

 

5.17 Local Plan Policy OS2 states that new development should be compatible with adjoining uses and 

not have a harmful impact on the amenity of existing occupants. The importance of minimising adverse 

impacts upon the amenity of future and neighbouring occupiers is reiterated in Policy OS4, the West 

Oxfordshire Design Guide and NPPF paragraph 185.  

 

5.18 The proposed tennis court would be sited approximately 30m from two residential properties that 

lie east of the site. Officers consider that this separation distance is sufficient to ensure that the 

Page 38



proposed use would not give rise to any unacceptable levels of noise and disturbance impact. Given the 

nature of the proposed, no further neighbourly amenity impacts by way of overlooking, overbearing or 

loss of light would result from the proposed. The application is therefore acceptable in this regard.  

 

Highways Impact 

 

5.19 Local Plan Policy OS2 states that new development should be provided with safe vehicular access, 

Policies T1 and T4 are also relevant to the application. Officers consider that the proposed development 

would result in no material impact upon the adjacent highway network as access and parking space will 

be retained and there is no logical reason to conclude that the proposed use would give rise to a 

discernible increase in traffic movements. As a result, the application is acceptable in this regard.  

 

Other Matters 

 

5.20 Following discussions with the applicant's agent, the possibility of a hard surfaced court being 

installed within the existing residential planning unit to the south of the main house has been discussed. 

The applicant believes that such works could be carried out as permitted development and should 

therefore be regarded as a material consideration. Given the significant possibility of this work being 

carried out in the event of a refusal, officers agree that that this alternative can be considered a material 

consideration in this assessment.  

 

5.21 In officer's assessment, locating the court within the established planning unit would likely result in 

a lesser visual impact than the proposed scheme, especially when considering that fencing would not be 

able to be erected under PD rights. Therefore, this consideration is not deemed sufficient to warrant 

departure from the Local Plan policies as listed in the report.  

 

Conclusion  

 

5.22 In light of the above, the application is considered to be unacceptable and contrary to policies OS2, 

OS4, EH9, EH11 and EH13 of the adopted West Oxfordshire Local Plan 2031, the West Oxfordshire 

Design Guide 2016, and the relevant provisions of the NPPF 2021. The application is therefore 

recommended for refusal. 

 

6 REASON FOR REFUSAL 

 

 

1. The siting and design of the proposed development would result in an incursion of formal domestic 

garden which would fundamentally affect the site's present rural and agricultural character. This 

would result in significant but 'less than substantial' harm to the setting of adjacent Grade II* listed 

Lower Court Farmhouse which is not outweighed by any substantive public benefits. The application 

is considered to be unacceptable and contrary to policies OS2, OS4, EH9, EH11 and EH13 of the 

adopted West Oxfordshire Local Plan 2031, the West Oxfordshire Design Guide 2016, and the 

relevant provisions of the NPPF 2021. 

 

 

 

Contact Officer: James Nelson 

Telephone Number: 01993 861712 

Date: 23rd March 2022 

 

Page 39



This page is intentionally left blank



DELGAT 
 

West Oxfordshire District Council – DELEGATED ITEMS  

 

Application Types Key 

 

Suffix 

 

 Suffix  

ADV Advertisement Consent LBC Listed Building Consent 

CC3REG County Council Regulation 3 LBD Listed Building Consent - Demolition 

CC4REG County Council Regulation 4 OUT Outline Application 

CM County Matters RES Reserved Matters Application 

FUL Full Application S73 Removal or Variation of Condition/s 

HHD Householder Application POB Discharge of Planning Obligation/s 

CLP 

CLASSM 

 

HAZ 

PN42 

 

PNT 

NMA 

WDN 

Certificate of Lawfulness Proposed 

Change of Use – Agriculture to 

Commercial 

Hazardous Substances Application 

Householder Application under Permitted 

Development legislation. 

Telecoms Prior Approval 

Non Material Amendment 

Withdrawn 

 

CLE 

CND 

PDET28 

PN56 

POROW 

TCA 

TPO 

 

FDO 

Certificate of Lawfulness Existing 

Discharge of Conditions 

Agricultural Prior Approval 

Change of Use Agriculture to Dwelling 

Creation or Diversion of Right of Way 

Works to Trees in a Conservation Area 

Works to Trees subject of a Tree 

Preservation Order 

Finally Disposed Of 

 

Decision 

Code 

 

 

Description 

 

Decision 

Code 

 

Description 

APP 

REF 

P1REQ 

P3APP 

P4APP 

Approve 

Refuse  

Prior Approval Required 

Prior Approval Approved 

Prior Approval Approved 

RNO 

ROB 

P2NRQ 

P3REF 

P4REF 

Raise no objection  

Raise Objection  

Prior Approval Not Required 

Prior Approval Refused 

Prior Approval Refused 

 

 

West Oxfordshire District Council – DELEGATED ITEMS 

Week Ending 7th March 2022 

 

  

Application Number.  

 

Ward. 

 

 Decision. 

 

 

1.  21/01365/FUL Chadlington and Churchill WDN 

  

Erection of temporary glamping site consisting of 30 canvas tents with awnings, a reception 

tent, and a supporting tea hub marquee, along with shower and toilet units and a caravan (for 

use May - September) 

Watermans Lodge Cornbury Park Charlbury 

Mr Elmhirst 

 

 

Page 41

Agenda Item 5



DELGAT 
 

2.  21/01381/FUL Ascott and Shipton REF 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Construction of two detached two storey buildings to form four hotel bedrooms (Amended). 

Shaven Crown Hotel High Street Shipton Under Wychwood 

Shaven Crown Hotel 

 

 

3.  21/01792/FUL Milton Under Wychwood APP 

  

Construction of conservation pond (amended plans). 

Land North East Of Old Foxcote Farmhouse Foscot Chipping Norton 

Mrs Sue Helm 

 

 

4.  21/02513/HHD Brize Norton and Shilton APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Demolition of chimney stack, conversion of car port and insertion of French doors. 

Wychwood Lodge Swinbrook Burford 

c/o Agent 

 

 

5.  21/03414/CLP Woodstock and Bladon APP 

  

Certificate of Lawfulness: Erection of a single storey extension and porch, enlargement of the 

roof, insertion of veluxes and replacement front door. (Amended) 

50 Banbury Road Woodstock Oxfordshire 

Mr Mensun Yellowlees-Bound 

 

 

6.  21/03463/LBC Kingham, Rollright and 

Enstone 

APP 

  

Phase 2A works including demolition works, partial refurbishment of, and works to, the main 

building complex, provision of new car park, refurbishment of and extension to existing 

spa/leisure building, construction of new ancillary buildings/structures, landscaping and all 

incidental works. Development part of overall upgrading of Heythrop Park Hotel and estate 

(Use Class C1). 

Heythrop Park Hotel Heythrop Park Heythrop 

Warner Leisure Hotels 

 

 

7.  21/03533/S73 Woodstock and Bladon APP 

  

Retrospective discharge of conditions 10 (water drainage) and 11 (finished floor levels, eaves 

and ridge height details) of planning permission 13/0974/P/FP 

46 Green Lane Woodstock Oxfordshire 

Mr David Carter 

 

 

Page 42



DELGAT 
 

8.  21/03572/HHD Stonesfield and Tackley APP 

  

Erection of front, side and rear extensions together with changes to fenestration, 

construction of new entrance porch and conversion of loft to include front and rear dormers 

(amended plans). 

Richmond The Ridings Stonesfield 

Mr And Mrs M Sabapathy 

 

 

9.  21/03789/CLE Charlbury and Finstock APP 

  

Certificate of Lawfulness (to allow the continued use of land as a caravan and camping site, 

including land ancillary to that use) 

Caravan Site Spelsbury Road Charlbury 

Mr Keith Dighton 

 

 

10.  21/03805/HHD Stonesfield and Tackley APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Ground floor and first floor side extensions with conversion of attic. (Amended). 

Cambo Peaks Lane Stonesfield 

Ms Hannah Crowe 

 

 

11.  21/03792/CND Chadlington and Churchill APP 

  

Discharge of condition 13 (details of owl box and bat loft) of planning permission 

21/00364/FUL 

The Barns Kingham Oxfordshire 

Mrs C Cash 

 

 

12.  21/03818/LBC Chadlington and Churchill APP 

  

Internal and external alterations to replace two windows with french doors to the North and 

South Elevations 

The Langston Nursing Home Station Road Kingham 

Mr Shan Shanmugathas 

 

 

13.  21/03923/CND Milton Under Wychwood APP 

  

Discharge of condition 4 (details of all external windows and doors) of planning permissions 

21/01182/FUL & 21/01183/LBC and Discharge of Condition 5 for planning permission 

21/02966/LBC 

The Walnuts Upper Milton Milton Under Wychwood 

Mr & Mrs Maltby 

 

 

Page 43



DELGAT 
 

14.  21/03946/HHD Brize Norton and Shilton APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Erection of a pool house with associated pool alterations and landscaping 

Wychwood Lodge Swinbrook Burford 

Mr Arnold 

 

 

15.  21/03949/FUL Chadlington and Churchill APP 

  

Extensions to and amalgamation of Westbridge and Centre Cottages to form a single 

dwellinghouse with external alterations to Old Forge Cottage for use as an annexe to the 

new dwelling and construction of detached garden room. Associated works, change of use to 

extend domestic curtilage and create new parking area. Close existing and relocate vehicular 

access. 

Westbridge Cottage Green End Chadlington 

Mr And Mrs G Bailey 

 

 

16.  21/03959/FUL Kingham, Rollright and 

Enstone 

APP 

  

Change of use of agricultural land together with conversion of barn and stables to ancillary 

residential use. Works to include, construction of an outdoor pool with associated 

landscaping works and walling. 

Little Tew Grounds Enstone Road Heythrop 

Mr and Mrs Andrew Cowley 

 

 

17.  21/03966/HHD Kingham, Rollright and 

Enstone 

APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Rear extension and replacement detached garage with garden room (Amended). 

New Cottage Church End Swerford 

Mr And Mrs P Stanton 

 

 

18.  21/03992/FUL Kingham, Rollright and 

Enstone 

APP 

  

Construction of an external balcony to serve existing first floor residential flat. 

Mo Tighe Chapel House Grounds Chipping Norton 

Mr C Baylis 

 

 

Page 44



DELGAT 
 

19.  21/04005/HHD Kingham, Rollright and 

Enstone 

APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Removal of existing roof to kitchen extension and replacement with steeper pitched open 

vaulted roof. Internal modifications to kitchen extension and alteration of its fenestration. 

Conversion of existing boxroom in cottage to shower room. Demolition of porch and plastic 

glazed cover to yard and erection of new porch and fencing. Replacement of exterior 

masonry paint, lowering of drive and replacement of ground floor slab. 

Pippin Cottage The Green Kingham 

S. Hard And D. Otzen 

 

 

20.  21/04006/LBC Kingham, Rollright and 

Enstone 

APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Removal of existing roof to kitchen extension and replacement with steeper pitched open 

vaulted roof. Internal modifications to kitchen extension and alteration of its fenestration. 

Conversion of existing boxroom in cottage to shower room. Demolition of porch and plastic 

glazed cover to yard and erection of new porch and fencing. Replacement of exterior 

masonry paint, lowering of drive and replacement of ground floor slab. 

Pippin Cottage The Green Kingham 

S. Hard & D. Otzen 

 

 

21.  21/04024/S73 Chadlington and Churchill APP 

  

Variation of conditions 2 (approved plans), 3 (materials), 4 (windows/doors), 6 

(access/drainage), 7 (surface water drainage), 8 ecological licence), 9 (boundary treatment), 12 

(biodiversity enhancement), 13 (lighting) and 14 (landscape) of planning permission 

20/01297/RES to allow design and technical revisions. 

Land North Of Langston Priory Nursing Home Station Road Kingham 

Castlethorpe Homes 

 

 

22.  21/04028/HHD Ascott and Shipton APP 

  

Conversion of existing detached garage to create home office 

1 Wychwood Court London Lane Ascott Under Wychwood 

Ms Eleni Renton 

 

 

23.  21/04063/HHD Kingham, Rollright and 

Enstone 

APP 

  

Proposed rear extensions (previously approved 18/01224/HHD) 

Upper Mill House Cleveley Chipping Norton 

John Meyer 

 

 

Page 45



DELGAT 
 

24.  21/04065/HHD Milton Under Wychwood WDN 

  

To change all of the front windows and also the front door, to erect fence 2 metres high on 

boundary line between adjoining house 

36 Elm Grove Milton Under Wychwood Chipping Norton 

Mr Lee Woodward 

 

 

25.  21/04098/HHD Burford APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Replacement of existing garage with 2 storey side extension to form kitchen/living, master 

bedroom and new porch (revision of 21/01210/HHD) 

Ambledown 8 Tanners Lane Burford 

Mr and Mrs Harrison 

 

 

26.  21/04114/CND Milton Under Wychwood APP 

  

Discharge of conditions 5 (details of bat roosting and nesting opportunities for birds), 7 

(comprehensive landscape scheme) and 9 (details of access between land and highway) of 

planning permission 20/02523/FUL 

Hay Barn Idbury Road Fifield 

Neil Warner 

 

 

27.  21/04130/CND Kingham, Rollright and 

Enstone 

APP 

  

Discharge of condition 5 (details of external doors and windows, stair and lifts, infills and 

partitions and new openings into foyer) of planning permission 21/00509/LBC 

Heythrop Park Hotel Heythrop Park Heythrop 

Warner Leisure Hotels 

 

 

28.  22/00004/S73 Chipping Norton APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Variation of condition 3 of planning permission 18/02038/HHD to allow the front porch to be 

constructed using a reclaimed natural stone finish rather than brick. 

30 Churchill Road Chipping Norton Oxfordshire 

Mr Ben Hadley 

 

 

29.  22/00092/CND Kingham, Rollright and 

Enstone 

APP 

  

Discharge of condition 4 (lighting design strategy for biodiversity) of planning permission 

21/03288/HHD 

Dower House Dunthrop Road Heythrop 

C/O Agent 

 

 

Page 46



DELGAT 
 

30.  22/00046/NMA Kingham, Rollright and 

Enstone 

APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

To install an electric car charging point in the garden, to be mounted on a Tesla-approved 

mounting post (non-material amendment to 21/03194/HHD to allow the charging point to be 

affixed to an oak post in a revised position). 

The Old Post Office Main Street Over Norton 

Dr Dipak Kalra 

 

 

31.  22/00071/HHD Charlbury and Finstock APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Single storey side extension 

3 Church Close Charlbury Chipping Norton 

Mr I Sanger 

 

 

32.  22/00073/CLP Freeland and Hanborough APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Certificate of Lawfulness (Erection of a rear extension) 

14 Millwood End Long Hanborough Witney 

Jo Feehily 

 

 

33.  22/00089/HHD Woodstock and Bladon REF 

  

Erection of a two storey front extension 

17 Green Lane Woodstock Oxfordshire 

Mr And Mrs J Jennings 

 

 

34.  22/00102/S73 Woodstock and Bladon APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Removal of condition 4 of planning permission 21/03001/FUL which limits the hours of 

operation of the first floor catering business. 

Woodstock Social Club 44 Oxford Street Woodstock 

Trustees Of Woodstock Social Club 

 

 

35.  22/00110/HHD Freeland and Hanborough REF 

  

Conversion of existing garage to living space together with the erection of single storey side 

and rear extensions, new front entrance porch and associated works including graveled 

parking area. 

18 Parklands Freeland Witney 

Mr R Massingham And Ms C Stephens 

 

 

Page 47



DELGAT 
 

36.  22/00127/HHD Woodstock and Bladon APP 

  

Amendment to application 21/02247/HHD - Removal of existing rear extensions. Erection of 

two storey and single storey rear extensions. Replacement of existing dormers and 

construction of porches to the front and side. 

11 Oxford Road Woodstock Oxfordshire 

Mr and Ms Selway 

 

 

37.  22/00136/HHD Burford APP 

  

First floor rear extension to form bedroom and ensuite 

Chubb Close Meadow Lane Fulbrook 

Mr Davies 

 

 

38.  22/00137/HHD Freeland and Hanborough WDN 

  

Two storey and single storey side and front extensions 

21 Parklands Freeland Witney 

Mrs S Cooper 

 

 

39.  22/00147/CLP Woodstock and Bladon APP 

  

Certificate of lawfulness (construction of a rear dormer and insertion of a rooflight  to front 

elevation) 

19 Hensington Road Woodstock Oxfordshire 

Delma O'Brien 

 

 

40.  22/00163/HHD Milton Under Wychwood APP 

  

Proposed three and a half bay oak framed garage in front of dwelling 

The Coach House Lyneham Road Milton Under Wychwood 

Mr Conrad Edwards 

 

 

41.  22/00170/CND Kingham, Rollright and 

Enstone 

APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Discharge of condition 5 (site investigation of the nature of extent of contamination) of 

planning permission 21/02494/FUL 

Harcomb House Evenlode Lane Chastleton 

Mr and Mrs Lambert 

 

 

Page 48



DELGAT 
 

42.  22/00173/HHD Woodstock and Bladon APP 

  

Removal of conservatory and part of garage and the erection of a single storey front 

extension, single and double storey rear extensions, including internal alterations and the 

upgrading and enhancement of the thermal performance and aesthetic appearance of the 

existing fabric (amended) 

9 Cadogan Park Woodstock Oxfordshire 

Mr Nunn 

 

 

43.  22/00176/S73 Charlbury and Finstock APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Variation of condition 2 of permission 21/02540/HHD to allow changes to the height of the 

rear roof 

Churchill House Wychwood Close Charlbury 

Vera Kollo 

 

 

44.  22/00180/HHD Chipping Norton APP 

  

Replace bifold doors at the front of the house with standard wall and window 

8 Glovers Close Chipping Norton Oxfordshire 

Andy Thomas 

 

 

45.  22/00189/HHD Chipping Norton APP 

  

Single storey side and front extension 

Hawthorn House 54 Over Norton Road Chipping Norton 

Mr Adam Nolan 

 

 

46.  22/00195/HHD Kingham, Rollright and 

Enstone 

APP 

  

Replacement of existing detached double garage and log store building with detached car port, 

home gym, garden store and home office above. 

Bumblebee Cottage Cleveley Chipping Norton 

Mr H Thomas 

 

 

47.  22/00208/HHD Kingham, Rollright and 

Enstone 

APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Proposed greenhouse with landscaping works 

Old Pound House The Green Kingham 

Mr & Mrs Blomefield 

 

 

Page 49



DELGAT 
 

48.  22/00211/HHD The Bartons APP 

  

Proposed first floor bathroom extension. The insertion of one rooflight and associated 

internal works, including work to the party wall with adjoining Roses Cottage 

Grove Cottage Over Worton Chipping Norton 

Mr And Mrs Malcolm Axtell 

 

 

49.  22/00212/LBC The Bartons APP 

  

Proposed first floor bathroom extension. The insertion of one rooflight and associated 

internal works, including work to the party wall with adjoining Roses Cottage 

Grove Cottage Over Worton Chipping Norton 

Mr & Mrs Malcolm Axtell 

 

 

50.  22/00213/HHD The Bartons APP 

  

Rearrangement of modern internal partitions and the stairs, alteration to the roof to the rear 

and the insertion of one rooflight. General refurbishment and associated internal works, 

including work to the party wall with adjoining Grove Cottage. Change a window to patio 

doors, and alteration of east facing first floor fenestration.The demolition and replacement of 

the timber garage and associated external works 

Rose Cottage Over Worton Chipping Norton 

Mr & Mrs Malcolm Axtell 

 

 

51.  22/00214/LBC The Bartons APP 

  

Rearrangement of modern internal partitions and the stairs, alteration to the roof to the rear 

and the insertion of one rooflight. General refurbishment and associated internal works, 

including work to the party wall with adjoining Grove Cottage. Change a window to patio 

doors, and alteration of east facing first floor fenestration.The demolition and replacement of 

the timber garage and associated external works 

Rose Cottage Over Worton Chipping Norton 

Mr & Mrs Malcolm Axtell 

 

 

52.  22/00218/HHD Woodstock and Bladon WDN 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Proposed two storey extension and addition of a garage 

28 Grove Road Bladon Woodstock 

Mrs Victoria Spires 

 

 

Page 50



DELGAT 
 

53.  22/00227/FUL Kingham, Rollright and 

Enstone 

APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Alterations to replace various windows and doors 

Great Rollright Church Of England Primary School Hook Norton Road Great Rollright 

Miss Michelle Hastings 

 

 

54.  22/00228/HHD Woodstock and Bladon APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Detached pitched roof garden room 

Belmont 12 Heath Lane Bladon 

Mr & Mrs R Tyler 

 

 

55.  22/00237/HHD Burford APP 

  

Construction of a contemporary timber clad garden building. 

6 Somerville Place Burford Oxfordshire 

Susan Wheatley 

 

 

56.  22/00335/PDET28 Chadlington and Churchill P4REF 

  

Proposed new agricultural access track. 

Curdle Hill Farmhouse Chipping Norton Road Chadlington 

Mr J Clarkson 

 

 

 

Page 51



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	1 Minutes of Previous Meeting
	Minutes

	4 Applications for Development
	5 Applications Determined under Delegated Powers and Appeal Decisions

